
          
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

        Click link to join meeting: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85145419079 
      Meeting ID:                        851 4541 9079 
 

 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Ross will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, January 10, 2022 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, January 10, 2022 be approved as 

circulated. 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, December 6, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held December 6, 2021 be adopted. 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Retirement of 
 Paul Wiskar, Building Official 

4.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Introduction of 
 Lance Fortier, New Public Works & Utilities Maintenance Worker & Water Operator 

4.3 Brandon Ma, Partner, Audit, KPMG, presentation regarding Audit Planning Report for the 
 Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

Via Zoom 
January 10, 2022 

7:00 PM 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85145419079


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  January 10, 2022 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\2.1 2022 01 10 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5. REPORTS 
 No Items. 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 

7. REPORTS FROM THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

7.1 2022 Official Community Plan (OCP) Review Committee Appointments 

7.2  Public Works Emergency Number – for Emergencies related to Roads, Water or the 
 Waste and Recycle Depot, please call 604-917-0113 

8. BYLAWS 
8.1 Village of Belcarra 5-Year (2022 – 2026) Financial Plan Bylaw No. 594, 2021 

Recommendation: 
That “Village of Belcarra 5-Year (2022 – 2026) Financial Plan Bylaw No. 594, 2021” be 
read a third time. 

8.2  Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 596, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw  

No. 596, 2021 be read a third time. 
 

8.3 Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 595, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 595, 2021, be read a third 

time. 

9. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 
Recommendation: 

 That correspondence items 9.1 to 9.13 be received. 

ACTION ITEMS 
9.1 Susan Mueckel, Financial Secretary, Heritage Woods Secondary School, After Grad 
 Committee, letter dated December 23, 2021, regarding Support for the Annual After Grad 
 Celebration 
 Recommendation: 
 That a donation in the amount of $150.00 to the Heritage Woods Secondary School 
 Dry After Grad Celebration and $150.00 to the Port Moody Secondary School Dry After 
 Grad Celebration be forwarded to the 2022 Budget discussions for consideration. 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  January 10, 2022 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\2.1 2022 01 10 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

9.2 Gurinder Mann, Executive Director, Communities Embracing Restorative Action (CERA) 
 Society, letter dated December 29, 2021, regarding a Request for a Community Grant for       
 the Community Youth Justice Program 
 Recommendation: 
 That the request for a Community Grant in the amount of $353.00 to be provided to the 
 Communities Embracing Restorative Action (CERA) Society for support of the Community 
 Youth Justice Program 2022 Fiscal Year be forwarded to 2022 Budget discussions for 
 consideration. 

9.3 Crossroads Hospice Society, letter regarding a Request for a Donation 
 Recommendation: 
 That a $500.00 donation to Crossroads Hospice Society be forwarded to 2022 Budget 
 discussions for consideration. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
9.4 Jim Snetsinger, Chair, Forest Enhancement Society of British Columbia, letter dated 
 November 30, 2021, regarding Priorities Identified in the BC Government’s April 6, 2021 
 Mandate Letter (full report available at the Village office) 
9.5 Erin Ryan, Specialist, Research Communications, BC SPCA, email dated December 2, 2021, 
 regarding BC SPCA Offer of Support: Changes to Rodenticide Use in Belcarra  
9.6 Klaus Bever, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding Application for 
 Multi Use Path Funding 
9.7 Ralph Drew, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding the Width of the 
 Multi Use Path 
9.8 Josh & Loretta Davis, Belcarra Residents, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding 
 Sidewalk / Senkler Road  
9.9 Jol Drake, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding Multi Use Path 
9.10 Patricia Miranda, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding Multi Use 
 Path 
9.11 Ruth & John Foster, Belcarra Residents, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding Please 
 tonight vote YES for Second Grant Application 
9.12 Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, letter dated December 13, 2021, regarding Concern 
 About the Management and Decisions Made by Current Mayor & Council 
9.13 Peter Busse, Mayor, District of Lillooet, letter dated December 15, 2021, to Brad Vis, 
 Member of Parliament for Mission-Matsqui-Fraser Canyon, regarding BC Wildfires 
 Petition (full report available at the Village office) 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
11. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  January 10, 2022 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\2.1 2022 01 10 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

12. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 
That the January 10, 2022 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the Community 
Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to the public if the 
subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of the following: 
 (a)  personal information about an identifiable individual who holds or is           
       being considered for a position as an officer, employee or agent of the         
       municipality or another position appointed by the municipality; 
 (c)  labour relations or other employee relations; 
 (g)  litigation or potential litigation affecting the municipality.” 

13. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the January 10, 2022 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



           
 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell  
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 

Others in Attendance 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant (departed at 10:30 pm) 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

 Mayor Ross called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, December 6, 2021 
 L. Dysart advised that 12 email messages were received as late correspondence 
 related to Item 5.2 and that they may be considered as an amendment to the agenda. 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, December 6, 2021 be amended by 

adding correspondence: 
 Item 8.10 Wisdom Chan, Acting Project Manager II, Infrastructure Program,   
   TransLink, email dated December 1, 2021, regarding Multi Use   
   Path Discussion 
 Item 8.11 Jol Drake, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 5, 2021,   
   regarding Letter of Support for TransLink Subsidy Application –   
   Potential Multi Use Path 
 Item 8.12 Colleen MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 5, 2021,   
   regarding Please…Tonight… Vote Yes for Second Grant Application 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

December 6, 2021 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 6, 2021 

Page 2 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\3.1 2021 12 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 Item 8.13 Cheryl Papove, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 5, 2021,   
   regarding TransLink Grant 
 Item 8.14 Kyle MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 5, 2021,  
   regarding Next Phase of Active Transportation Path Funding 
 Item 8.15 Judi Kask, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021,   
   regarding Sidewalk on Bedwell Bay Road 
 Item 8.16 Kristina Bell, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021,   
   regarding Sidewalk / Senkler Road 
 Item 8.17 Ian MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021,  
   regarding Support for Bedwell Bay Path 
 Item 8.18 Kevin Ferris, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021,   
   regarding Safe Side Walks 
 Item 8.19 Emily Hicks, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021,   
   regarding Request for Funding: Bedwell Bay Path 
 Item 8.20 Cecily Baptist, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021,   
   regarding Bedwell Bay Walkway 
 Item 8.21 Klaus Bever, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021,   
   regarding MUP 
 And be approved as amended. 

     CARRIED  
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, November 22, 2021 
 Moved by:   Councillor Snell 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held November 22, 2021 be adopted. 

   CARRIED 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Steve Pomeroy, Focus Consulting Group & Richard White, RWPAS Ltd., presentation 
 regarding Housing Needs Assessment 
 Richard White provided an outline of the Provincial requirement for every municipality            
 to complete a Housing Needs Assessment. He noted that the assessment for Belcarra       
 was done in conjunction with Anmore and Lions Bay. R. White advised that a $15,000.    
 UBCM grant was provided to the Village to complete the assessment. 
 Steve Pomeroy provided a PowerPoint presentation outlining the following: 

• Clarifying two concepts: housing required and housing need 
• Overview of the local demographic & market context 
• Comparing household & dwelling size 
• Home prices and affordability 
• Core housing need = much lower than Metro Vancouver 
• Recent Population, household growth & housing market response 
• Estimating future housing required 
• Anticipating future core housing needs 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 6, 2021 

Page 3 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\3.1 2021 12 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

• Conclusions included the need to plan / build smaller dwelling types and        
expanding policies to encourage secondary suites in existing homes 

 Discussion ensued with regard to the report provided. 

 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated December 6, 2021, regarding 
 Province of British Columbia Housing Needs Assessment – UBCM  Housing Needs   
 Report 
 L. Dysart outlined the report noting that all communities are required to prepare a     
 Housing Needs Report based on a prescribed format produced by the Ministry of   
 Municipal Affairs and Housing. This report was required within one year of the project         
 being authorized. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the Belcarra Housing Needs Assessment 2021 be forwarded to the Province of 
 British Columbia, the Union of British Columbia Municipalities and Metro Vancouver. 

CARRIED 
 Mayor Ross thanked Richard White and Steve Pomeroy for their presentation. 
 R. White & S. Pomeroy left the meeting at 7:34 pm. 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Memo to L. Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, from Wilson Zhu & Mike Rotzien, WSP, 

dated November 30, 2021, regarding Proposal for SCADA System Upgrades: HMI 
Computer Replacements and Miscellaneous Programming Changes 

 L. Dysart provided a correction to the motion adding that $52,000. be provided from      
the SCADA Capital Budget for the upgrade. She introduced Mike Rotzien, Senior    
SCADA Technologist and Negin Tousi, Project Engineer / Manager Transportation & 
Infrastructure, WSP.  

 Negin Tousi noted that the hardware and software that run the Village water SCADA 
system are outdated and have caused reliability concerns throughout the months. She 
advised that Belcarra Water Operators have requested to have the totalized flow data for 
their flowmeters at the three (3) stations displayed on their SCADA computer screens. 
This addition will require programming changes to the station control system and the 
SCADA computer. 

 Mike Rotzien provided an overview of the memo regarding the Proposal for SCADA 
System Upgrades. He noted that a redundant system for emergencies may be added      
at a later date. 

 Discussion ensued. Council asked pertinent questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 6, 2021 

Page 4 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\3.1 2021 12 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded:   Councillor Drake 
 That staff proceed with Option 1, in the amount of $43,000.00, as outlined in the memo 

provided by WSP, dated November 30, 2021, regarding funding costs for an upgrade to 
the SCADA system; and 

 That funding for the upgrade be provided from the 2022 SCADA Capital Budget in the 
amount of $52,000.00; and 

 That an additional report be provided to Council with additional project costs as details  
are confirmed. 

CARRIED 
 Mayor Ross thanked Mike Rotzien & Negin Tousi for the presentation. 
 M. Rotzien & N. Tousi left the meeting at 7:43 pm 
5.2 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report dated 
 December 6, 2021, regarding 2022 TransLink Grant Funding, Multi Use Path on     
 Bedwell Bay Road 
 S. Novak outlined the report. It was noted that Late Item 8.10, an email from Wisdom Chan, 
 Acting Project Manager II, Infrastructure Program, TransLink, provides a summary of 
 pooling funds from the cost share programs for the Bedwell Bay Road MUP Project until 
 2024.  
 Wisdom Chan outlined the commitment of TransLink to provide continual support for the 
 successful delivery of the project. She noted that these funding programs are not in 
 competition with other municipalities.  
 Council asked pertinent questions related to the location and width of the pathway, as  
 well as whether the pathway would be paved or gravel. L. Dysart noted that Belcarra 
 funding would be from the Community Works Gas Tax Reserve. Residents provided  
 comments. 

8:55 pm Mayor Ross requested that Councillor Wilder assume the chair for Item 5.2. 
  Deputy Mayor Wilder assumed the chair. 

 Moved by:   Mayor Ross  
 Seconded by:  Councillor Drake 

That Council approve 2022 TransLink Grant Funding in the amount of (75%) $191,000.00 
(MRNB $84,000, BICCS $59,000 and WITT $48,000) and Belcarra of  (25%) $63,340.00; 
and 
That Council confirms its willingness to continue providing grant management should 
funding be approved. 

CARRIED 
Councillor Clark voted in opposition 

9:17 pm  Mayor Ross assumed the chair 
 Discussion ensued. 

The meeting recessed at 9:22 pm and reconvened at 9:32 pm. 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 6, 2021 

Page 5 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\3.1 2021 12 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

5.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated December 6, 2021, regarding 5-Year 
(2022 – 2026) Financial Plan Bylaw No. 594, 2021 

 K. Bjorgaard outlined the report. Discussion ensued regarding work taking place with  
staff on the Asset Management Plan, which is a Strategic Priority of Council.   

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That “Village of Belcarra 5-Year (2022 – 2026) Financial Plan Bylaw No. 594, 2021” be   
read a first and second time. 

CARRIED 
5.4  Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated December 6, 2021, regarding Fees 

 and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 596, 2021 
  K. Bjorgaard outlined the report. Council asked questions related to User Rates.             

 K. Bjorgaard provided a breakdown of the rates. Additional details related to this matter 
 will be provided. Discussion ensued. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw    

No. 596, 2021 be read a first and second time. 
CARRIED 

5.5 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer & Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report 
dated December 6, 2021, regarding Council Indemnity Increase 

 K. Bjorgaard outlined the report. Discussion ensued.  
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 
 That the Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 595, 2021, be read a first and 

second time. 
CARRIED 

5.6 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding the Appointment of 
 Trustees to Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD)  
 L. Dysart outlined the report noting that appointments to the SVFD Trustees are annual 
 appointments. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 

That Council appoint Mayor Ross, Councillor Drake and Councillor Wilder as the Village 
of Belcarra three (3) Trustees to the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) Board. 

     CARRIED 
5.7 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated December 6, 2021, regarding 
 Update on Water System – Staff Tracking Form 
 L. Dysart outlined the Tracking Form prepared by staff which provided an update on the 
 Council motions from the Regular Council meeting on November 8, 2021. 
 L. Dysart advised of the hiring of Lance Fortier as Public Works and Utilities Maintenance 
 Worker / Water Operator 1. He will start work for the Village on December 20, 2021. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 6, 2021 

Page 6 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\3.1 2021 12 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 L. Dysart advised that WSP staff engineers are working on a few matters. Reports will     
 be brought forward to Council as the reviews are completed. The Staff Tracking Form   
 will be brought back to Council when updates occur. 
 Considerable discussion ensued with regard to the 31 points on the Water System 
 motions. Various items were queried and comments were provided. 

Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
Seconded by:  Councillor Drake 
That the Regular Council meeting of December 6, 2021 be extended to 11:10 pm. 

CARRIED 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the “Update on Water System Staff Tracking Form” dated December 6, 2021,  
 be received for information. 

CARRIED 
 6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
   6.1 Mayor’s Reports 

a) Tri-Cities Chamber of Commerce  
• Mayor Ross will attend the Tri- Cities Chamber of Commerce Christmas 

Luncheon on December 9, 2021 
b) School District 43 (SD43) 

• Mayor Ross was joined by Councillor Clark & Councillor Wilder at a SD43 
meeting held November 25, 2021. Michael Thomas, the new Chair, and       
Carol Cahoon, the new Vice-Chair of SD43 were introduced. He noted that 
SD43 is looking for support of local Councils for a Mental Health Committee.       

c) Covid 19 Update  
• Mayor Ross noted that Belcarra Council and other meetings in 2022 may  

be hybrid meetings, if COVID restrictions are lifted. 
d) Season’s Greetings 

• On behalf of Council, Mayor Ross extended Seasons Greetings to 
residents. 

7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021  
 Moved by:  Councillor Snell 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That “Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 593, 2021” be adopted. 

CARRIED 
8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.21 be received. 

CARRIED 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 6, 2021 

Page 7 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\3.1 2021 12 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 No items.  
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Bill Dingwall, Mayor, City of Pitt Meadows, letter dated November 17, 2021 to 
 Honourable Selina Robinson, Minister of Finance, regarding Unfair Taxation 
 Benefitting Railway and Industrial Operations 
8.2 Honourable Selina Robinson, Minister of Finance, letter dated November 22, 2021, 
 regarding Speculation and Vacancy Tax – Mayors Feedback Timeline Extension 
8.3 Dave Warren, Belcarra Resident, email dated November 22, 2021, regarding Taxes 
8.4 Chris Nicolls, Secretary – Treasurer / CFO, School District No. 43 (Coquitlam), letter 
 dated November 24, 2021 regarding Announcement of New Board Chair and Vice–Chair 
8.5 Stephanie Lam, Legislative Services Manager, City of Coquitlam, letter to Chris Plagnol, 
 Corporate Officer / Director Board and Information Services, Metro Vancouver, dated 
 November 25, 2021, regarding City of Coquitlam Comments on Draft Metro 2050 
 Regional Growth Strategy (full report available at the Village  office) 
8.6 Richard Stewart, Mayor, City of Coquitlam, letter to Honourable David Eby, Attorney 
 General & Minister Responsible for Housing & Honourable Josie Osborne, Minister of 
 Municipal Affairs, dated November 25, 2021, regarding Opening Doors: Unlocking 
 Housing Supply for Affordability  
8.7 Ian Devlin, Belcarra Resident, letter dated November 28, 2021, regarding the Multi Use 
 Path Project 
8.8 Brian & Carol Hirsch, Belcarra Residents, letter dated November 30, 2021, 
 regarding Multi Use Path (MUP) Project  
8.9 Don Babineau, Belcarra Resident, email dated November 30, 2021, regarding the 
 Multi use Path Project 

8.10 Wisdom Chan, Acting Project Manager II, Infrastructure Program, TransLink, email 
 dated December 1, 2021, regarding Multi Use Path Discussion 
8.11 Jol Drake, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 5, 2021, regarding Letter of  Support 
 for TransLink Subsidy Application – Potential Multi Use Path 
8.12 Colleen MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 5, 2021, regarding 
 Please…Tonight… Vote Yes for Second Grant Application 
8.13 Cheryl Papove, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 5, 2021, regarding 
 TransLink Grant 
8.14 Kyle MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 5, 2021, regarding Next 
 Phase of Active Transportation Path Funding 
8.15 Judi Kask, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding Sidewalk on 
 Bedwell Bay Road 
8.16 Kristina Bell, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding Sidewalk / 
 Senkler Road 
8.17 Ian MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding Support for 
 Bedwell Bay Path 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  December 6, 2021 

Page 8 of 8 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\3.1 2021 12 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

8.18 Kevin Ferris, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding Safe Side 
 Walks 
8.19 Emily Hicks, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding Request for 
 Funding: Bedwell Bay Path 
8.20 Cecily Baptist, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding Bedwell Bay 
 Walkway 
8.21 Klaus Bever, Belcarra Resident, email dated December 6, 2021, regarding MUP 

9. NEW BUSINESS  
 Councillor Drake advised that he will report on community discussions regarding biking 
 and pathway priorities at the January 10, 2022 Council meeting. 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to the affordability of building 
 pathways. 
 Deborah Struk, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to the cost of providing one phase 
 of the proposed pathway. 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by:  Councillor Clark  

 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

 That the December 6, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 11:02 pm. 
CARRIED      

Certified Correct: 
 

 
 
 

   

Jamie Ross 
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart  
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 
 
 
 

  
 

 
January 10, 2022 
 
I am pleased to announce the hiring of Lance Fortier, as a new Public Works 
staff, for the position of Public Works & Utilities Maintenance Worker / Water 
Operator.    
 
Lance has worked for over a decade in all facets of public works.  He has 
significant knowledge, skills and understanding of the position.   
 
Lance commenced work for the Village in December 2021.     
 
Please join Belcarra Council members and staff in welcoming  
Lance Fortier to the Village.   
 
Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Newly Hired Public Works & Utilities Maintenance 

Worker and Water Operator –  
Lance Fortier  

prichardson
Typewritten Text
4.2



Audit Planning Report P a g e  | 1 

 kpmg 
 

Village of Belcarra 
 

Audit Planning Report for the year ended 
December 31, 2021 
 
 
 

 

 
Prepared on January 4, 2022, for presentation on 
January 10, 2022

 

kpmg.ca/audit 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
4.3



 

Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 1 

Table of contents 
Executive summary 2 

Materiality 3 

Areas of focus for financial reporting 4 

Audit risks 5 

Audit quality: How do we deliver audit quality? 6 

Key deliverables and milestones 7 

Appendices 8 
 

KPMG contacts 

  

The contacts at KPMG in connection with this report are: 

Brandon Ma, CPA, CA 
Engagement Partner 
Tel: 604-691-3562 
bjma@kpmg.ca 

Victoria Whittaker, ACA (UK) 
Manager 
Tel: 250-244-0801 
vwhittaker@kpmg.ca 
 

 



 

Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 2 

Executive summary
Areas of focus for financial reporting 

Our audit of the Village of Belcarra (the “Village”) is risk-focused. In planning 
our audit we have taken into account key areas of focus for financial 
reporting. These include: 

− Financial reporting implications of COVID-19 
− Tangible capital assets 
− Payroll and other operating costs 
− Legal claims 

See page 4. 

Effective communication 

We are committed to transparent and thorough reporting of issues to 
management and Council. This is achieved through formal and informal 
meetings and communications throughout the year. If you have any 
comments you would like to bring to our attention, please contact Brandon 
Ma. 

See Appendix 1. 

 

 

 

 

Materiality 

Materiality has been determined based on total budgeted expenses. We 
have determined materiality to be $50,000 (2020 - $55,000). 

See page 3. 

Quality control and independence 

We are independent and have a robust and consistent system of quality 
control. We provide complete transparency on all services and follow the 
Village’s approved protocols. 

See page 6. 

Current developments 

Please refer to Appendix 2 for the current developments updates. 

This report to Council is intended solely for the information and use of management and Council and should not be used for any other purpose or any other party. KPMG 
shall have no responsibility or liability for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this report to Council has been prepared for, and is not intended for, 
and should not be used by, any third party or for any other purpose. 



 

Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 3 

Materiality 
Materiality is used to identify risks of material misstatements, develop an appropriate audit response to such risks, and evaluate the level at which we think 
misstatements will reasonably influence users of the financial statements. It considers both quantitative and qualitative factors.  

To respond to aggregation risk, we design our procedures to detect misstatements at a lower level of materiality. Professional standards require us to re-
assess materiality at the completion of our audit based on period-end results or new information in order to confirm whether the amount determined for 
planning purposes remains appropriate. 

Materiality determination Comments Amount 

Materiality Established by considering various metrics that are relevant to the users of the financial 
statements and determined to plan and perform the audit and to evaluate the effects of identified 
misstatements on the audit and of any uncorrected misstatements on the financial statements.  
The corresponding amount for the prior year’s audit was $55,000. 

$50,000 

Benchmark Based on total budgeted expenses for the year ended December 31, 2021. 
This benchmark is consistent with the prior year. 

$1,846,616 

% of Benchmark The prescribed range is between 0.5% and 3.0% of the benchmark.  
The corresponding percentage for the prior year’s audit was 2.7%. 

2.7% 

Audit misstatement posting 
threshold 

Threshold used to accumulate misstatements identified during the audit.  
The corresponding amount for the prior year’s audit was $2,750. 

$2,500 

. 

 

We will report to Council: 

Corrected audit misstatements 

Uncorrected audit misstatements 

 



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 4 

Areas of focus for financial reporting  
Areas of focus Why are we focusing here? Our audit approach 

Financial reporting 
implications of COVID-
19 

The COVID-19 pandemic continued 
to have an impact on the Village’s 
operations in 2021. 

˗ Update our understanding of process activities and controls over each significant 
financial process to identify changes resulting from the pandemic. 

˗ Review variances in revenue and expenses from the prior year balances to assess 
whether the variances are reasonable and the revenue and expenses reported in the 
financial statements are complete and accurate.  

˗ Review a sample of items funded by the COVID-19 Safe Restart grants and ensure 
that the appropriate accounting treatment has been applied to the grant. 

˗ Review the COVID-19 financial statement note disclosure to ensure it appropriately 
describes the impact of the pandemic on the Village’s operations. 

Tangible capital assets Tangible capital assets represent a 
significant portion of assets for the 
Village.  

˗ Detailed testing of asset additions, including inspection of supporting documentation 
to determine if additions are capital in nature and to test accuracy of amounts recorded. 

˗ Detailed testing of dispositions including inspection of supporting documentation and 
assessing if the gain or loss on disposition has been recorded appropriately. 

˗ Review the reasonableness of amortization expense recognized. 

˗ Review agreements for contractual commitments and related disclosure requirements. 

Payroll and operating 
costs 

The Village incurs payroll and 
operating costs which are 
significant expenses of the Village’s 
operations. 

˗ Update our understanding of the processes and controls over the payroll and 
procurement activities. 

˗ Perform analytical procedures to understand the change in payroll and operating costs 
relative to the prior year, and corroborate all significant variances noted by reviewing 
supporting documentation. 

Legal claim The Village may be subject to legal 
claims creating an obligation for 
financial statement purposes 

˗ Discuss legal claims with management as well as review legal invoices and Council 
meeting minutes. 

˗ Review management’s assessment of any legal claims. 

˗ Obtain written confirmation from the Village’s external legal counsel. 



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 5 

Audit risks  
Significant risk - professional requirements Why is it significant? 

Presumption of the risk of fraud resulting from management override of 
controls. 

Management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability 
to manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements 
by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 
Although the level of risk of management override of controls will vary from 
entity to entity, the risk nevertheless is present in all entities. 

Our audit approach 

As the risk is not rebuttable, our audit methodology incorporates the required procedures in professional standards to address this risk. These procedures 
include: 
− Testing of journal entries and other adjustments,  
− Performing a retrospective review of estimates, and  
− Evaluating the business rationale of significant unusual transactions. 

Inquiries required by professional standards 

Professional standards require that we obtain your view on the risk of fraud. We make similar inquiries to management as part of our planning process: 
− Are you aware of, or have you identified any instances of actual, suspected, possible, or alleged non-compliance of laws and regulations or fraud, 

including misconduct or unethical behavior related to financial reporting or misappropriation of assets? If so, have the instances been appropriately 
addressed and how have they been addressed? 

− What are your views about fraud risks in the Village? 
− How do you exercise effective oversight of management’s processes for identifying and responding to the risk of fraud in the Village and internal controls 

that management has established to mitigate these fraud risks? 
− Has the Village entered into any significant unusual transactions? 

  



 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 6 

Audit quality: How do we deliver audit quality?  
Quality essentially means doing the right thing and remains our highest priority. Our Global Quality Framework outlines how we deliver quality 
and how every partner and staff member contribute to its delivery. 

    

Doing the right thing. Always. 

‘Perform quality engagements’ sits at the core along with 
our commitment to continually monitor and remediate to fulfil 
on our quality drivers.  

Our quality value drivers are the cornerstones to our approach 
underpinned by the supporting drivers and give clear direction 
to encourage the right behaviours in delivering audit quality. 

We define ‘audit quality’ as being the outcome when: 

– audits are executed consistently, in line with the 
requirements and intent of applicable professional 
standards within a strong system of quality controls; and  

– all of our related activities are undertaken in an environment of 
the utmost level of objectivity, independence, ethics, and 
integrity.  

Transparency report      

 

https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2020/12/2020-audit-quality-and-transparency-report.pdf
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2020/12/2020-audit-quality-and-transparency-report.pdf
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2020/12/2020-audit-quality-and-transparency-report.pdf
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2020/12/2020-audit-quality-and-transparency-report.pdf
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2020/12/2020-audit-quality-and-transparency-report.pdf


 

 Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 7 

Key deliverables and milestones 
 

 

  

January 2022 

December 2021 

March 2022 

Planning

Provide 
audit 

planning 
report to 
Council

Year-end 
audit 

fieldwork

Present 
draft audit 
findings 

report and 
draft 

auditors 
report to 
Council

Ongoing communication 
with the Council and 

Management 

April 2022 



 

Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 8 

 

 
 

Appendices 
 

 
Appendix 1: Required communications 
 
Appendix 2: Current developments 
 

 

  

 

 



 

Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 9 

Appendix 1: Required communications 
Auditors’ report Engagement letter 

A copy of our draft auditors’ report setting out the conclusion of our audit 
will be provided at the completion of the audit. 

The objectives of the audit, our responsibilities in carrying out our audit, as well 
as management’s responsibilities, are set out in the Agreement for Audit 
Services dated October 18, 2017. 

Audit findings report  Management representation letter 

At the completion of the audit, we will provide our findings report to the 
Council. 

We will obtain from management certain representations at the completion of 
the audit. In accordance with professional standards, a copy of the 
representation letter will be provided to Council. 

Independence Internal control deficiencies 

At the completion of our audit, we will re-confirm our independence to the 
Council. 

Control deficiencies identified during the audit will be communicated to 
management and the Council. 

 

  



 

Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 10 

Appendix 2: Current developments 
Thought Leadership – Local Governments 

Thought leadership Overview Link 

Cities portal KPMG in Canada provides insights and resources for municipalities on a variety of topics including 
achieving sustainable infrastructure, the new reality for government in Canada, drinking water 
supply and park access. 

Link to Canadian 
portal 

The Future of Local 
Government 

The Future of Local Government report provides a Canadian perspective for how local governments 
can meet the rapidly changing needs and expectations of their stakeholders – the citizens, partners 
and leaders across diverse cities and communities they serve. 

Link to Canadian 
portal 

The Future of Cities The Future of Cities report unpacks our KPMG Global research and insights on the future of local 
government, providing an international viewpoint. The report traces the unprecedented journey 
ahead. Cities worldwide are now poised at a significant inflection point, as their leaders realize that 
long-held ‘one-size-fits-all’ approaches to planning and policies will likely no longer work to shape 
cities for a future that is truly healthy, sustainable, efficient and prosperous for all.  

Link to Global 
portal 

The Future of Government The Future of Government report considers all levels of government and provides additional 
perspective from the content in the Future of Local Government report. It discusses the opportunity 
for governments to consider a different vision of Canadian social systems and how they can adapt 
their operations to reflect the needs of a modern Canada.  

Link to Canadian 
portal 

CX Coffee Chats: 
Modernizing Government 

As a result of the pandemic, government organizations have been faced with unprecedented 
demand for digital transformation in the delivery of services to Canadians. In the latest installment of 
the CX Coffee Chat series, industry specialists discuss the evolving needs of Canadians and the 
opportunities for government organizations to deliver online services citizens can count on. 

Link to Canadian 
portal 

20 Predictions for the Next 
20 Years 

This series looks at how new technologies could evolve and how these advances will change every 
facet of our lives, including the industries and sectors that drive them. We asked KPMG in Canada 
subject matter specialists, across industries and sectors, to tell us know they think the world will 
change in the next two decades. Specifically for local governments, the political and regulatory 
predictions may be especially relevant. 

Link to Canadian 
portal 

 

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/industries/government-public-sector/cities.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/industries/government-public-sector/cities.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/09/the-future-of-local-government.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/09/the-future-of-local-government.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2021/11/the-future-of-cities.html?cid=int-eml_dl_all_xx_2021_future-of-cities_spot2
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2021/11/the-future-of-cities.html?cid=int-eml_dl_all_xx_2021_future-of-cities_spot2
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/10/the-future-of-government.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/10/the-future-of-government.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/11/cx-coffee-chats-modernizing-government.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/11/cx-coffee-chats-modernizing-government.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/market-insights/predictions.html?utm_medium=Email&utm_source=ExactTarget&utm_campaign=
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/market-insights/predictions.html?utm_medium=Email&utm_source=ExactTarget&utm_campaign=


 

Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 11 

Appendix 2: Current developments (continued) 
Thought Leadership – Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) 

Thought leadership Overview Link 

Unleashing the Positive in 
Net Zero 

CoP26 in Glasgow made some progress to tackling climate change but there is much more to do. At 
KPMG, we’re committed to accelerating the changes required to fight climate change. Our Global 
portal provides links to further thought leadership to help drive real change.  

Link to Global 
portal 

KPMG Climate Change 
Financial Reporting 
Resource Centre 

KPMG’s climate change resource centre provides FAQs to help you identify the potential financial 
statement impacts for your business. 

Link to Global 
portal 

You Can’t Go Green 
Without Blue – The Blue 
Economy is Critical to All 
Companies’ ESG Ambitions 

In this report, KPMG considers how leading corporates and investors can take action to capture the 
value that can be found in a healthy, sustainable ocean economy. 

Link to Canadian 
portal 

Inclusion and diversity 
practices 

In 2021 societal changes brought more attention to inclusion and diversity. In this age of 
transparency, businesses must act proactively to implement strategic inclusion and diversity 
practices. It has become increasingly important for organizations to adopt I&D initiatives in order to 
foster an enjoyable work environment for their employees. Learn how to consider your own 
organizations' unique context, meet with the stakeholders you want to include, understand where 
they are at, and guide them along their own individual transformation journey. 

Link to Canadian 
portal 

 

Thought Leadership – Digital and Technology 

Thought leadership Overview Link 

Going digital, faster in 
Canada 

Pre-COVID-19, private and public organizations were moving towards a digital business model, 
travelling at varying speeds. But the pandemic forced a dramatic acceleration, both in the speed of 
change and the required investment to digitally transform. According to Canadian insights from 
KPMG’s recent global survey, organizations are investing heavily in technology to address 
immediate concerns, ranging from falling revenue and interrupted supply chains to building longer-
term competitiveness and operational resilience. 

Link to Canadian 
portal 

https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2020/06/kpmg-impact/climate-change.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2020/06/kpmg-impact/climate-change.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2021/06/climatechange-financial-reporting-resource-centre.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2021/06/climatechange-financial-reporting-resource-centre.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/06/you-cant-go-green-without-blue.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/06/you-cant-go-green-without-blue.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/08/getting-started-on-the-inclusion-and-diversity-journey.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/08/getting-started-on-the-inclusion-and-diversity-journey.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/05/going-digital-faster-in-canada.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/05/going-digital-faster-in-canada.html


 

Audit Planning Report  P a g e  | 12 

Appendix 2: Current developments (continued) 
Thought leadership – Board, Audit Committee, and C-Suite 

Resources Summary Links 

Accelerate Our Accelerate series offer insight into the key issues that will drive the Audit Committee agenda in 
2022 in a number of key areas: cyber-related risk, digital transformation in the finance function, the 
‘Great Resignation’ impacting finance, climate-related physical risks, enterprise risk management, and 
building a climate-conscious organization.  

Link to Canadian 
Accelerate 2022 
Insights series 

KPMG 2021 CEO 
Outlook – Canadian 
Insights 

This year we surveyed over 1,300 CEOs globally and the results are pointing to an optimistic outlook 
amongst Canadian CEOs. Some of the key themes coming out of the survey include expectations for 
aggressive growth through expansion, investment in both people and technology as well as a focus on 
delivering on environmental, social and governance (ESG) and sustainability commitments. 

Link to Canadian 
portal 

Board Leadership 
Centre + Audit 
Committee Guide  

KPMG in Canada Board Leadership Centre engages with directors, board members and business 
leaders to discuss timely and relevant boardroom challenges and deliver practical thought leadership on 
risk and strategy, talent and technology, globalization and regulatory issues, financial reporting and 
more. 
The new Audit Committee Guide – Canadian Edition from our Board Leadership Centre provides timely, 
relevant and trusted guidance to help both new and seasoned audit committee members stay informed.  

Link to Canadian 
portal 

 
 

Link to 2021 guide 
 

 

Thought Leadership – Audit Quality and Insights 

Thought leadership Overview Link 

Audit Quality and 
Transparency Report 

Learn about KPMG's ongoing commitment to continuous audit quality improvement. We are investing 
in new innovative technologies and building strategic alliances with leading technology companies that 
will have a transformative impact on the auditing process and profession. How do we seek to make an 
impact on society through the work that we do? 

Link to Canadian 
portal 

 
Link to 2021 Global 

report 

Audit and Assurance 
Insights 

KPMG provides curated research and insights on audit and assurance matters for audit committees 
and boards. 

Link to Canadian 
porta 

https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/12/navigating-the-changing-risk-landscape.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/12/navigating-the-changing-risk-landscape.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/12/navigating-the-changing-risk-landscape.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/09/kpmg-2021-ceo-outlook-canadian-insights.html?utm_medium=Email&utm_source=ExactTarget&utm_campaign=
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/09/kpmg-2021-ceo-outlook-canadian-insights.html?utm_medium=Email&utm_source=ExactTarget&utm_campaign=
http://home.kpmg/ca/blc
http://home.kpmg/ca/blc
http://home.kpmg/ca/blc
http://home.kpmg/ca/blc
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/11/audit-committee-guide-canadian-edition.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/services/audit/audit-quality-resources.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/services/audit/audit-quality-resources.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/about/kpmg-international-transparency-report.html
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/about/kpmg-international-transparency-report.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/05/audit-assurance-insights.html
https://home.kpmg/ca/en/home/insights/2021/05/audit-assurance-insights.html


 

 

 

 
kpmg.ca/audit 
 
 
© 2022 KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are trademarks used under license 
by the independent member firms of the KPMG global organization. 

 

KPMG member firms around the world have 227,000 professionals in 146 countries. 

 

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit.html


J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\7.1 2021 12 10 Announcement of Council Appointments - 2022 OCP Review 
Committee Members.docx 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 
December 10, 2021 
 
 
Council has appointed the following 11 residents to the 2022 Official Community Plan (OCP) 
Review Committee: 

• Larry Carlsen 
• Paul Degraaf 
• Ian Devlin 
• Jol Drake 
• Ralph Drew 
• Kevin Ferris 
• Tracey McRae 
• Mary-Ann Pope 
• Sandra Rietchel 
• Janet Ruzycki 
• Angela Yin 

 
Urban Systems has been selected to provide Consulting Services to lead the 2022 OCP Review 
Committee. 
 
An organizational meeting will take place early in 2022. A date for the meeting will be 
determined. Committee meetings will be held on Zoom. 
 
 
 
 
Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
2022 Official Community Plan  

Review Committee Appointments 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.3



 

  
 

 
 

A bylaw to establish the 5-Year Financial Plan for the years 2022 – 2026 inclusive. 
 
WHEREAS pursuant to section 165 of the Community Charter, the Council shall, before 
the 15th of May in each year, before the annual property tax bylaw is adopted, adopt a 
financial plan; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Municipal Council has caused to be prepared a 5-Year Financial 
Plan for the period 2022 – 2026 inclusive; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra 5-Year (2022 
– 2026) Financial Plan Bylaw No. 594, 2021”. 

2. Council hereby adopts the 5-Year Financial Plan for the years 2022 – 2026 
inclusive, as set out in Schedules A and B, attached to and forming part of this 
bylaw. 

3. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then 
the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to 
have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, 
subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

 
READ A FIRST TIME on December 6, 2021 
 
READ A SECOND TIME on December 6, 2021 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on  
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of  
Village of Belcarra 5-Year (2022 – 2026) Financial  
Plan Bylaw No.594, 2021 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
5-Year (2022 – 2026) Financial Plan  

Bylaw No. 594, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



Village of Belcarra 5-Year (2022 – 2026) Financial Plan Bylaw No. 594, 2021  
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\8.1 Bylaw No. 594, 2021 - Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw 2022-2026.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
REVENUE

Taxation (including grants in lieu)        (977,182)     (1,033,338)    (1,092,736)  (1,155,564)  (1,222,020)    
Parcel taxes (233,498)     (233,498)       (233,498)     (233,498)     (233,498)       
Sale of services & regulatory fees (618,764)     (680,291)       (749,028)     (825,833)     (911,676)       
Government transfers (748,094)     (497,123)       (516,550)     (510,466)     (789,457)       
Investment income               (32,324)       (32,705)         (33,092)       (33,483)       (33,880)         
Actuarial income (45,144)       (51,216)         (57,530)       (64,097)       (70,927)         

Total Revenue (2,655,006)  (2,528,171)    (2,682,434)  (2,822,941)  (3,261,458)    

EXPENSES
General government & fiscal services 241,111       203,449        206,426      209,455      239,378        
Administration & human resources 276,540       259,769        264,840      270,012      275,286        
Information technology 40,592         38,192          39,008        39,850        40,718          
Support services (engineering, finance & planning) 276,615       139,283        141,155      113,062      115,004        
Building inspection & bylaw enforcement 72,896         68,501          69,868        71,262        72,684          
Public works & transportation 242,421       234,482        238,431      242,544      246,734        
Major road network (MRN) 143,740       159,213        161,680      164,193      166,755        
Fire & emergency services 57,928         7,492            7,530          7,568          7,607            
Waste & recycle depot (WARD) 158,338       177,840        181,833      185,930      190,127        
Water system 427,564       476,729        492,738      510,963      530,646        
Amortization 337,451       354,090        371,555      389,889      409,135        

Total Expenses 2,275,196    2,119,040     2,175,064   2,204,728   2,294,074     

ANNUAL SURPLUS (379,810)     (409,131)       (507,370)     (618,213)     (967,384)       

RESERVES, DEBT & CAPITAL
Tangible capital assets 641,833       450,000        332,500      205,000      550,000        
Amortization (337,451)     (354,090)       (371,555)     (389,889)     (409,135)       
Repayment of debt (principal & actuarial) 151,789       157,861        164,175      170,742      177,572        
Transfers from reserves (593,973)     (466,946)       (338,196)     (191,946)     (290,039)       
Transfers to reserves 497,752       603,675        694,238      793,074      907,729        
Transfers from surplus (6,301)         (7,553)           -              -              -                
Transfers to surplus 26,161         26,184          26,208        31,232        31,257          

Total Reserves, Debt & Capital 379,810       409,131        507,370      618,213      967,384        

FINANCIAL PLAN BALANCE -              -                -              -              -                

Schedule A - Financial Plan



Village of Belcarra 5-Year (2022 – 2026) Financial Plan Bylaw No. 594, 2021  
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\8.1 Bylaw No. 594, 2021 - Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw 2022-2026.docx 

  
Schedule B – Statement of Objectives and Policies 

 
Financial Plan Objectives and Policies for Funding Sources, Distribution of Property Value Taxes, and 

Permissive Tax Exemptions 
     
A. Funding Sources    
    
Over the Village of Belcarra’s 5-year financial plan the funding sources, as defined in Section (165) (7) of the 
Community Charter, are as follows:    

 
  
Objectives:     

 Ensure that the Village’s services are sustained over the long-term by providing for core operations 
and future asset/infrastructure replacements and renewals.    

 Policy:     

 Build up reserves to optimal levels through property tax and utility user fee increases (for water and 
the waste & recycle depot).   

 Minimize external borrowing and create internal reserve sources of funding and financing.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Operating Revenue Sources

Property value taxation 39.8% 41.1% 41.1% 41.2% 41.0%
Parcel tax 9.5% 9.3% 8.8% 8.3% 7.9%
Fees 25.2% 27.1% 28.2% 29.4% 30.7%
Other sources* 25.5% 22.5% 21.9% 21.1% 20.4%
Proceeds from borrowing 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Totals 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Capital Revenue Sources
Other sources - Reserves 68.7% 96.7% 92.1% 92.7% 47.5%
Other sources - Grants 31.3% 3.3% 7.9% 7.3% 52.5%
Proceeds from borrowing 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Totals 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

* Government transfers, investment income & actuarial on debt

Funding Sources



Village of Belcarra 5-Year (2022 – 2026) Financial Plan Bylaw No. 594, 2021  
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\8.1 Bylaw No. 594, 2021 - Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw 2022-2026.docx 

 B. Distribution of Municipal Property Taxes Across Property Classes  
  
Over the term of the financial plan the distribution of municipal property taxes across the property tax classes 
is expected to be similar to 2021, as follows:  
 
   

 
  
 Objective:     

 Maintain a consistent, proportionate relationship in the sharing of the tax burden amongst the tax 
classes.  

 Policy:     

 Set tax rates in accordance with the tax class multiples set by the Province of BC.  
  

  
C. Permissive Tax Exemptions    
  
Objective:     

 Recognize the contributions of non-profit organizations and groups which provide services and 
activities for the Community. 

 Policy:     

 Full or partial permissive tax exemptions will be considered to encourage activities or services that:  
 

 are consistent with the quality of life (economic, social, and cultural) objectives of the Village; 
 provide direct access and benefit to the community, and 
 would otherwise be provided by the Village.

  
   Council Policy 176 provides additional details and requirements for Permissive Tax Exemptions. 

  
   
  

 

Property Classes

Property Tax 
Dollars 
Raised 

% of Total 
Property 
Taxation

1 Residential $901,291 98.7%
2 Utilities $1,097 0.1%
3 Supportive Housing $0 0.0%
4 Major Industry $0 0.0%
5 Light Industry $0 0.0%
6 Business/Other $14 0.0%
7 Managed Forest Land $0 0.0%
8 Recreation/Non-Profit $11,381 1.2%
9 Farm $0 0.0%

Totals $913,783 100.0%

Distribution of 2021 Property Taxes



 

  

A bylaw to amend fees and charges for services 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time; 
AND WHEREAS the Village of Belcarra Council has deemed it necessary to amend its fees and charges 
bylaw; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 
517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 596, 2021” 

2. That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended: 

 a) In Schedule 10 “Recycling and Garbage Collection and Removal” by  

replacing: 
 “Authorized User (per parcel of real property  $396.00 per annum 
 improved or unimproved) 

 Authorized User (non-resident)    $396.00 per annum 

 Accessory Suite (additional dwelling unit)   $396.00 per annum” 

 with: 
 “Authorized User (per parcel of real property   $438.00 per annum 
  improved or unimproved) 

 Authorized User (non-resident)    $438.00 per annum 

 Accessory Suite (additional dwelling unit)   $438.00 per annum” 

b) In “Schedule 13 – Waterworks Fees” by  

replacing: 
“Basic Fee – Fire Protection 
(prorated upon date of permit for Use Fee Domestic 
 or Use Fee Fire Sprinkler System)    $902.00 

Use Fee – Domestic 
(pro-rated as of one month after the first day of 
the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,286.00 

Use Fee – Fire Sprinkler System 
(pro-rated as of one month after the first day of 
the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,286.00” 

with: 
“Basic Fee – Fire Protection 
(prorated upon date of permit for Use Fee Domestic 
 or Use Fee Fire Sprinkler System)    $1,066.00 

Use Fee – Domestic 
(pro-rated as of one month after the first day of 
the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,520.00 

Use Fee – Fire Sprinkler System 
(pro-rated as of one month after the first day of 
the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,520.00” 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 

Amendment Bylaw No. 596, 2021 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2



Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 596, 2021 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\8.2 Bylaw No. 596, 2021 Fees and Charges Amendment 
Bylaw 517, 2018.docx` 

2 

 3. This bylaw shall take force and come into effect as of July 1, 2022. 

 
 
READ A FIRST TIME on December 6, 2021 
 
READ A SECOND TIME on December 6, 2021 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on  
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
   
Jaime Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw 
No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 596, 2021 

 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

       
 

 
A bylaw to provide for the payment of an indemnity to  

Village of Belcarra Mayor and Councillors 
 
WHEREAS the Municipal Council may, by bylaw, provide for the payment from annual 
general revenue, an indemnity to the Mayor and to each Councillor for the discharge of 
their duties of office;  
 
NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Village of Belcarra in open meeting 
assembled enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Council 
Indemnity Bylaw No. 595, 2021". 

2. The indemnity for the Mayor from February 1, 2022, up to and including        
December 31, 2022, shall be the gross sum of $1,929.60 monthly.  

3. The indemnity for each Councillor from February 1, 2022, up to and including 
December 31, 2022, shall be the gross sum of $964.80 monthly.  

4. The indemnities provided for in Section 2 and 3 above shall be paid by the Chief 
Administrative Officer, save and except for the provisions of Section 5 hereof. 

5. In the event of any member of Council being absent from three consecutive 
regular Council meetings, the indemnity that would otherwise be due to that 
member shall not be paid to that member.  This provision may be waived by a 
unanimous vote in favour thereof by the remaining members of Council. 

6. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then 
the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to 
have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, 
subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

7. This bylaw shall take force and come into effect as of February 1, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Council Indemnity  

Bylaw No. 595, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3



Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 595, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2022\2022 01 10\8.3 Bylaw 595 2021 Council Indemnity Bylaw.docx 
 

2 
  

8. The “Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021” is hereby 
repealed. 

  
 
READ A FIRST TIME on December 6, 2021 
 
READ A SECOND TIME on December 6, 2021 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on  
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 595, 2021 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.2











prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.3









prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.5





prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.6



prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.7



prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.8



prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.9



prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.10



prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.11



prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.12



prichardson
Typewritten Text
9.13




	3.1 2021 12 06 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	5.2 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report dated  December 6, 2021, regarding 2022 TransLink Grant Funding, Multi Use Path on      Bedwell Bay Road
	S. Novak outlined the report. It was noted that Late Item 8.10, an email from Wisdom Chan,  Acting Project Manager II, Infrastructure Program, TransLink, provides a summary of  pooling funds from the cost share programs for the Bedwell Bay Road MUP P...
	Wisdom Chan outlined the commitment of TransLink to provide continual support for the  successful delivery of the project. She noted that these funding programs are not in  competition with other municipalities.
	Council asked pertinent questions related to the location and width of the pathway, as   well as whether the pathway would be paved or gravel. L. Dysart noted that Belcarra  funding would be from the Community Works Gas Tax Reserve. Residents provide...
	Moved by:   Mayor Ross
	That Council approve 2022 TransLink Grant Funding in the amount of (75%) $191,000.00 (MRNB $84,000, BICCS $59,000 and WITT $48,000) and Belcarra of  (25%) $63,340.00; and
	That Council confirms its willingness to continue providing grant management should funding be approved.
	5.7 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated December 6, 2021, regarding  Update on Water System – Staff Tracking Form
	L. Dysart advised of the hiring of Lance Fortier as Public Works and Utilities Maintenance  Worker / Water Operator 1. He will start work for the Village on December 20, 2021.
	L. Dysart advised that WSP staff engineers are working on a few matters. Reports will      be brought forward to Council as the reviews are completed. The Staff Tracking Form    will be brought back to Council when updates occur.
	Considerable discussion ensued with regard to the 31 points on the Water System  motions. Various items were queried and comments were provided.
	Certified Correct:

	8.1 Bylaw No. 594, 2021 - Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw 2022-2026.pdf
	A bylaw to establish the 5-Year Financial Plan for the years 2022 – 2026 inclusive.
	WHEREAS pursuant to section 165 of the Community Charter, the Council shall, before the 15th of May in each year, before the annual property tax bylaw is adopted, adopt a financial plan;
	AND WHEREAS the Municipal Council has caused to be prepared a 5-Year Financial Plan for the period 2022 – 2026 inclusive;
	NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. This Bylaw shall be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra 5-Year (2022 – 2026) Financial Plan Bylaw No. 594, 2021”.
	2. Council hereby adopts the 5-Year Financial Plan for the years 2022 – 2026 inclusive, as set out in Schedules A and B, attached to and forming part of this bylaw.
	3. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagrap...
	READ A FIRST TIME on December 6, 2021
	READ A SECOND TIME on December 6, 2021
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of  Village of Belcarra 5-Year (2022 – 2026) Financial  Plan Bylaw No.594, 2021
	Schedule B – Statement of Objectives and Policies

	8.2 Bylaw No. 596, 2021 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw 517, 2018.pdf
	A bylaw to amend fees and charges for services
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	AND WHEREAS the Village of Belcarra Council has deemed it necessary to amend its fees and charges bylaw;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	a) In Schedule 10 “Recycling and Garbage Collection and Removal” by
	replacing:
	“Authorized User (per parcel of real property  $396.00 per annum
	improved or unimproved)
	Authorized User (non-resident)    $396.00 per annum
	Accessory Suite (additional dwelling unit)   $396.00 per annum”
	with:
	“Authorized User (per parcel of real property   $438.00 per annum
	improved or unimproved)
	Authorized User (non-resident)    $438.00 per annum
	Accessory Suite (additional dwelling unit)   $438.00 per annum”
	b) In “Schedule 13 – Waterworks Fees” by
	replacing:
	“Basic Fee – Fire Protection (prorated upon date of permit for Use Fee Domestic  or Use Fee Fire Sprinkler System)    $902.00
	Use Fee – Domestic (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,286.00
	Use Fee – Fire Sprinkler System (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,286.00”
	with:
	“Basic Fee – Fire Protection (prorated upon date of permit for Use Fee Domestic  or Use Fee Fire Sprinkler System)    $1,066.00
	Use Fee – Domestic (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,520.00
	Use Fee – Fire Sprinkler System (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,520.00”
	3. This bylaw shall take force and come into effect as of July 1, 2022.
	READ A FIRST TIME on December 6, 2021
	READ A SECOND TIME on December 6, 2021
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw
	No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 596, 2021

	8.3 Bylaw 595 2021 Council Indemnity Bylaw.pdf
	A bylaw to provide for the payment of an indemnity to  Village of Belcarra Mayor and Councillors
	READ A FIRST TIME on December 6, 2021
	READ A SECOND TIME on December 6, 2021
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 595, 2021




